
AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 22, 2023 
CITY HALL | 130 N. NOTTAWA ST. 

WIESLOCH RAUM 

REGULAR MEETING 6:00 P.M. 
1. CALL TO ORDER BY MAYOR
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. INVOCATION
4. ROLL CALL
5. PROCLAMATIONS / PRESENTATIONS
6. VISITORS – (Public comments for items not listed as agenda items)
7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
8. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Action of Minutes of Previous Meetings
• APPROVE the minutes from the March 8, 2023 work session as presented.
• APPROVE the minutes from the March 8, 2023 regular meeting as presented.

B. Pay Bills
• AUTHORIZE the payment of the City bills in the amount of $1,409,520.32 as presented.

C. Community Easter Hunt
• APPROVE the Community Easter Egg Hunt on April 8, 2023 as presented.

D. Board Resignations
• ACCEPT the resignations of Joyce Haas from the Sturgis District Library Board and Roxanne Persing

from the DDA Board of Directors and SEND letters of recognition for their service.
9. UNFINISHED BUSINES

A. Mowing Bids – Rick Miller
10. NEW BUSINESS

A. Continuing Care Retirement Community Liquor License – Andrew Kuk
B. Urban Chickens Discussion – Andrew Kuk
C. Budget Amendments – Holly Keyser
D. 2nd Precinct Commissioner Vacancy – Kenneth Rhodes

11. COMMISSIONER / STAFF COMMENTS
12. ADJOURN

1



Manager’s Report 
MARCH 22, 2023 

Submitted by: 

Andrew Kuk 
Interim City Manager 

2



8. Consent Agenda

Proposed Motion: 
Move that the Sturgis City Commission APPROVE/DENY the Consent Agenda for 
March 22, 2023 as presented. 

Staff Recommendation: 
APPROVE 

8A. Action of Minutes of Previous Meetings 

Consent Agenda Motion: 
APPROVE the minutes from the March 8, 2023 work session as presented. 

Consent Agenda Motion: 
APPROVE the minutes from the March 8, 2023 regular meeting as presented. 

8B. Pay Bills 

Consent Agenda Motion: 
AUTHORIZE the payment of the City bills in the amount of $1,409,520.32 as 
presented. 

8C. Community Easter Egg Hunt 

Zach Hayden from ATA Excellence Martial Arts is requesting use of Thurston 
Woods Park for a free Community Easter Egg Hunt on April 8th, 2023.  They 
are requesting use of one pavilion as a check in area.  They will advertise 
time slots and pre-registration will be required for the event.   

Staff made contact with the contractors for the splash pad project to ensure 
there would be no conflict with the event and the start of their work.  
Contractors plan to begin mobilizing April 10th. 

Consent Agenda Motion: 
APPROVE the Community Easter Egg Hunt on April 8, 2023 as presented. 

3



8D. Board Resignations 

Joyce Haas and Roxanne Persing have submitted their resignation from the 
Sturgis District Library Board and the DDA Board of Directors, respectively.  
These vacancies will be advertised. 

Consent Agenda Motion: 
ACCEPT the resignations of Joyce Haas from the Sturgis District Library Board 
and Roxanne Persing from the DDA Board of Directors and SEND letters of 
recognition for their service.  

4



9. Unfinished Business 
A.  Mowing Bids 
Staff:  Rick Miller 
 
As presented at the March 8th City Commission meeting, contracts for mowing 
and trimming maintenance for both the Department of Public Services and the 
Electric Department expired at the end of the 2022 mowing season. Bid packets 
were assembled and sent to bidders in February.  The bid requested costs for 
mowing services and leaf removal services at City-owned properties for a period 
of 3 years: 2023, 2024, and 2025. 
 
Leaf removal was included for the first time in this year’s bid as an option.  Staff 
requested a fixed-cost bid for leaf pickup services as an option to be exercised.  
This portion of the bid would only be exercised and the associated costs incurred if 
it becomes necessary. 
 
Eight contractors submitted bids and six different bidders submitted low bids for 
the sites to be mowed.  Contractors submitted bids on a per-mowing basis.  For 
three Electric sites bids were also requested for fertilizing, weed control, and 
grub treatments; bid costs were requested on an annual basis for these services.  
The bid data is included in your packet in the mowing bid comparison 
spreadsheets. 
 
Following the last meeting, staff prepared additional information for the 
Commission on the history of the mowing bid process, costs, and parks and 
cemetery staffing, as well as information on the estimated annual cost to mow as 
projected from the per-bid costs. 
 
In early 2011 the City began looking at the possibility of contracting some mowing 
services.  At the time it was decided that staff should send out a request for 
proposals for the mowing of several specific sites.  Contractors were asked to 
provide pricing to mow each individual site one time. The intent was to request 
contractor services on an as-needed basis.  The proposal was based on a maximum 

5



of (5) requests for mowing during the 2011 season. Ultimately, no request to 
contractors was made during the 2011 mowing season. 
 
In 2012 staff was asked to receive bids for the mowing maintenance of some 
previously selected green space sites located within the city limits in an effort to 
compare City costs to contractor prices.  In the bid, contractors were asked to 
provide pricing for the 2012 and the 2013 mowing season.  Bids requested at that 
time were by site for the entire season. Costs were compared on an annual basis. 
After receiving bids and comparing costs staff found that for 10 of the 30 sites 
contractor prices were lower than the City’s costs for mowing.   The City 
Commission voted to approve contracts with three separate contractors to mow 
those sites, but elected to offer contracts for the 2012 mowing season only, with 
the intention bid out mowing again in 2013 if contractors performed favorably and 
provided services that met expectations.  
 
The first time multiple year contracts were awarded for mowing services by the 
City Commission was in 2013-2014.  The bid process was repeated for the 2015-
2016 mowing seasons. During these bid processes, bids were still being compared 
on an annual basis.  City staff made changes to the way time was being tracked so 
it would be easier to compare City mowing costs per-site in future years.  
 
In 2017 the City switched to a three-year contract and combined the Electric 
mowing with the DPS Mowing. The majority of the DPS mowing sites for which the 
City requested pricing remained the same.  In the bid documents for 2017-2019 
we asked for pricing on a per mow basis for all sites.  
 
The 2020 bid package was basically the same with the addition of some City 
Subdivision II sites.  For the 2022 mowing season, the low bidder for mowing 
Memorial Park and the Doyle Center was Great Lakes Lawnscaping. They let the 
City know early on in 2022 they would no longer be mowing.  Price quotes for 
mowing of those sites were requested from contractors who currently had 
contracts with the City and only Ricketts responded.  Their bid was significantly 
higher than the previous amount so the sites were publicly bid.  Due to the high 
volume of work and increasing difficulty to find seasonal staffing at the Cemetery 
& Parks Department the City also bid the mowing of Franks Park, Wall Fields, 

6



Spence Softball Complex, and the field prep/maintenance at Spence. Grasshopper 
Lawn Care was the low bidder for Memorial Park and the Doyle Center and New 
Creations Landscape was low bidder for Wall fields. City costs for mowing of 
Franks Park and Spence Softball Complex, as well as field prep at Spence Softball 
Complex were significantly less than contractor pricing.  For that reason they were 
not recommended for mowing by others.  
 
The 2023 mowing bid is a continuation of this same process. The goal since this 
process was started has been to create additional time for Cemetery and Parks 
staff to work on additional projects.  Their workload is tremendous.  Mowing and 
maintaining the cemeteries, parks and associated green spaces, park play 
equipment, athletic fields, islands and bulb outs in the downtown, the Depot & 
Freight house, in addition to special projects and assistance with community 
events all require additional time.  Compounding issues such as dealing with 
inclement weather, staffing, mechanical issues, and time constraints are not new.  
Contracting out a portion of the mowing is one the department has been able to 
free up hours for staff to work on other projects and tasks. 
 
Included in your packet is a new mowing history spreadsheet with data from 2012 
through the current recommended bids that shows pricing as well as whether sites 
were City mowed or contractor mowed.  To compare the costs over time, 2017-
2025 costs have been converted from their as-bid per-mow cost to annual costs 
using an assumed number of mows per-year. 
 
Also included in your packet is a spreadsheet identifying parks and cemetery 
staffing from fiscal year 2011 through fiscal year 2022.  Full time staff are 
identified as well as total full-time equivalent staffing for the department. 
 
In reviewing cost history and the most current round of bids, staff re-evaluated 
three DPS mowing sites: Memorial Drive/Nottawa ROW, the Paramount Site, and 
the N. Jefferson Retention Basin.  All three were mowed by City staff in 2020-2023, 
but had not been evaluated against the City cost to mow.  After completing this 
comparison, it has been determined that the Memorial Park site should be 
retained by City staff, as the per-mow cost for this site is less that the contractor’s 

7



bid price.  The other two sites continue to be recommended for contracting out.  
An updated version of the bid tab for DPS mowing is included in your packet.  
 
The revised list of contractors being recommended to the Commission for mowing 
contracts (DPS and Electric) for the 2023, 2024, and 2025 mowing seasons are: 

• Cutter’s Edge Lawn Care & Maintenance LLC. – 20 sites in 2023, 19 sites 
in 2024, 23 sites in 2025  

• Grand Impressions Property Maintenance – 1 site in 2023, 2024, 2025 
• New Creations Landscape – 1 site in 2023, 2024, 2025 
• Rickett Lawn Care – 14 sites in 2023, 15 sites in 2024, 12 sites in 2025 
• Straight Line Mowing – 1 site in 2023, 2024 
• Total Property Management – 6 sites in 2023, 2024, 2025 

 
Contractors being recommended for as-needed leaf pickup services for the 2023, 
2024, and 2025 season are: 

• Cutter’s Edge Lawn Care & Maintenance LLC. – 14 leaf pickup sites in 2023, 
2024, and 2025 

• Grasshopper Lawn Care – 2 leaf pickup sites in 2023, 2024, and 2025 
• Rickett’s Lawn Service – 9 leaf pickup sites in 2023, 2024, and 2025 

 
Proposed Motion: 
Move that the Sturgis City Commission APPROVE/DENY the DPS mowing bids for 
trimming and maintenance of City properties for 2023, 2024, and 2025 from 
Cutter’s Edge Lawn Care & Maintenance LLC, New Creations Landscape 
Management, Rickett’s Lawn Service, Straight Line Mowing, and Total Property 
Management as presented. 
 
Proposed Motion: 
Move that the Sturgis City Commission APPROVE/DENY the electric mowing bids 
for trimming and maintenance of City properties for 2023, 2024, and 2025 from 
Cutter’s Edge Lawn Care & Maintenance LLC, Grand Impressions, New Creations 
Landscape Management, Rickett’s Lawn Service, and Total Property 
Management as presented. 
 

8



Proposed Motion: 
Move that the Sturgis City Commission APPROVE/DENY the bids for as-needed 
leaf pickup service of City properties for 2023, 2024, and 2025 from Cutter’s Edge 
Lawn Care & Maintenance LLC, Grasshopper Lawn Care, and Rickett’s Lawn 
Service as presented. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
APPROVE, APPROVE, and APPROVE  
 
Included in your packet: 
1. Updated DPS Mowing Bid Recommendations 
2. DPS Leaf Pick-Up Bid Recommendations 
3. Electric Mowing Bid Recommendations 
4. Mowing Contract Historical Data 
5. Parks-Cemetery Staffing History 

  

9



10. New Business 
A.  Continuing Care Retirement Community Liquor License 
Staff:  Andrew Kuk 
 
Tim Stoll, Executive Director of Thurston Woods Village, recently approached City 
staff regarding their intent to apply for a special liquor license.  Under State law, a 
continuing care retirement community such as Thurston Woods is eligible to apply 
for a license to serve/sell alcohol to their residents and guests. 
 
The license allows the facility to sell at retail and serve on premises beer, wine, 
mixed drinks, and/or spirits for consumption by a resident or bona fide guests of a  
resident.  Thurston Woods anticipates using the license for social hours on their 
campus, possibly during resident meals, and for special events like their 70th 
Anniversary Dinner. 
 
State law limits the number of licenses issued state-wide to 25 total, 20 under the 
category of facility for which Thurston Woods qualifies.  Currently there are six 
available licenses. 
 
As part of the application for the special license, the “Local Government 
Organization”, in this case the City, must recommend the application be 
considered for approval.  Included in your packet is the local government approval 
form which would be filled out and submitted, as well as a copy of the State law 
regarding nonpublic continuing care retirement center liquor licenses. 
 
Proposed Motion: 
Move that the Sturgis City Commission RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND the 
application of Thurston Woods Village, 307 N. Franks Ave., for a nonpublic 
continuing care retirement center liquor license be considered for approval by 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
RECOMMEND 
 

10



Included in your packet: 
1. Nonpublic continuing care retirement center liquor license law 
2. Michigan Liquor Control Local Government Approval form 
 
  

11



10. New Business 
B.  Urban Chickens 
Staff:  Andrew Kuk 
 
At the previous City Commission meeting, Commissioners requested information 
on past work done on the topic of urban chickens and to put the topic on the 
agenda for this meeting for further discussion.   
 
The issue of urban chickens was originally discussed in 2011.  Further discussion 
came in 2021, when the City Commission and Planning Commission both looked 
into the topic and whether to do additional work on the subject.  Ultimately at the 
September 20th, 2021 City Commission meeting there was not consensus to refer 
the matter back to the Planning Commission for review.   
 
Included in your packet is information from previous work done on this topic in 
2011 and 2021.  This includes meeting minutes from 2011 Planning Commission 
and City Commission meetings discussing the topic, a proposed ordinance from 
2011, a City staff report to the Planning Commission from 2021, and summary 
information regarding ordinances from other communities compiled in 2021. 
 
Included in your packet: 
1. 7-20-2021 Planning Commission Staff Report 
2. 2011 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
3. 2011 City Commission Meeting Minutes 
4. Proposed Ordinance – 2011 
5. City of Ann Arbor Ordinance 
6. City Ordinance Comparisons 
7. Sample Permit Applications 
  

12



10. New Business 
C.  Budget Amendments 
Staff:  Holly Keyser 
 
Included in your packet is a memo from City Controller Holly Keyser regarding 
budget amendments for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.  In accordance with the Uniform 
Budgeting and Accounting Act, governmental funds need to be amended to reflect 
changes in the expected revenue and operating expenditures incurred in the 2022-
2023 fiscal year, as compared to those originally estimated. 
 
Proposed Motion: 
Move that the Sturgis City Commission APPROVE/DENY the Budget Amendments 
for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 as presented. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
APPROVE 
 
Information Included in Packet: 
1. Budget Amendment Memo 
  

13



10. New Business 
D.  2nd Precinct Commissioner Vacancy 
Staff:  Kenneth Rhodes 
 
The City Commission Procedural Policy outlines the steps to fill the upcoming 2nd 
Precinct Commissioner vacancy.  The advertisement would be placed on the City’s 
website and Facebook page and sent to area media.  It would ask applicants to 
ensure that they are a registered voter of the 2nd Precinct, provide information 
such as their name, address, employer, and submit a short essay expressing their 
reasons for seeking appointment. 
 
The announcement of Comm. Klinger’s resignation has already been in the media, 
so setting a deadline of Thursday, April 6th, 2023 should be adequate.  The City 
Commission would conduct interviews of applicants at a work session prior to the 
regular meeting on Wednesday, April 12th.  The selection of the new Commissioner 
would then take place at the next meeting on April 26th, with an effective date of 
May 1st.  The selected applicant’s first regular meeting would be May 10th. 
 
If there are any changes to this suggested schedule, they should be made at this 
meeting. 
 
  

14



Noteworthy Meetings / Events 
• Doyle Board Meeting | March 6th 
• Township Supervisor’s Meeting | March 8th  
• SIA/EDC/BRA/LDFA Meeting | March 9th  
• Keith Skaggs Retirement Party | March 10th  
• Styrofoam Recycling | March 11th  
• Bourbon, Bacon & Blues Planning Meeting | March 14th  
• Downtown Parking Lot #6 Public Meeting | March 16th  

Upcoming Events  
• Winter Wine Down / Art Auction | Downtown | 5:30pm-9:00pm | March 24th  
• An Evening with Jamie Drake | SYCA | 7:30pm | April 13th  
• MML Capital Conference | April 19th 
• Spring Food & Flower Fest | Downtown | 5:30pm-9:00pm | April 28th  

 
 

 
 

15



City of Sturgis 
City Commission 
Regular Meeting 

 
Agenda Item 8A 

16



 

17



WORK SESSION - STURGIS CITY COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 2023 

WIESLOCH RAUM – CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Mullins called the meeting to order at 5:10 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present: Bir, Smith, Harrington, Hile, Perez, Vice-Mayor Miller, Mayor Mullins 
Commissioners absent: Klinger, Kinsey 
 
Also present: Interim City Manager, City Controller, Public Safety Director, City Clerk 
 
Public Safety Director Ryan Banasak and City Controller Holly Keyser provided information on 
the experience to date of the ambulance service, including run volume, staffing, response times, 
billing and collections.  Discussion followed. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Kenneth D. Rhodes, City of Sturgis Clerk/Treasurer 

18



REGULAR MEETING - STURGIS CITY COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 2023 

WIESLOCH RAUM – CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Mullins called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was said by all present. 
 
The Invocation was given by Vice-Mayor Miller.  
 
Commissioners present: Bir, Klinger, Smith, Harrington, Hile, Perez, Vice-Mayor Miller, Mayor 
Mullins 
Commissioners absent: Kinsey 
 
Also present: City Attorney, Interim City Manager, City Controller, Public Safety Director, 
Facilities Manager, City Engineer, City Clerk 
 
 
Moved by Comm. Hile and seconded by Comm. Smith to approve the agenda as presented. 
Voting yea: Eight             Voting nay: None               Absent: Kinsey            MOTION CARRIED  
   
 

 

Moved by Comm. Hile and seconded by Comm. Smith to approve the Consent Agenda of March 8, 
2023 as presented. 
 
8A. Action of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
• APPROVE the minutes from the February 22, 2023 regular meeting as presented. 
• APPROVE the minutes from the February 27, 2023 special meeting as presented. 
B. Pay Bills 
• AUTHORIZE the payment of the City bills in the amount of $2,234,305.44 as presented. 
C. 2023 Trinity Lutheran Cross Walk  
• APPROVE the requests for the 2023 Trinity Lutheran Church Cross Walk as presented. 
D. Thurston Woods “This is How I Roll” Awards Show & Swap Meet 
• APPROVE the 2023 Thurston Woods “This is How I Roll” Awards Show & Swap Meet as 
presented. 
Voting yea: Eight             Voting nay: None               Absent: Kinsey            MOTION CARRIED  
 
   

 

Interim City Manager Andrew Kuk provided information on bathrooms that will be a part of the 
splashpad project.  Discussion followed including the possible addition of elements in the bathrooms. 
 
Moved by Comm. Hile and seconded by Comm. Perez to approve the purchase from QPI for a 
precast restroom facility as presented in the amount of one hundred and fifty thousand, five hundred 
dollars ($150,500.00) and authorize Interim City Manager Andrew Kuk to sign all necessary 
documents. 
Voting yea: Seven            Voting nay: Smith              Absent: Kinsey            MOTION CARRIED 

 

19



  
Mayor Mullins explained that the interviews for City Manager took place on February 27, 2023, 
which included only Andrew Kuk, after the other applicant dropped out of consideration that 
morning.  Commissioners expressed support of Mr. Kuk and commended him on his interview.  
Comm. Perez also expressed support for Mr. Kuk but explained that he had concerns about the 
process because of the lack of other candidates to be interviewed. 
 
Mayor Mullins read a letter of support for Mr. Kuk from Comm. Kinsey. 
 
Moved by Comm. Miller and seconded by Comm. Hile to extend a conditional offer of employment 
to Andrew Kuk for the position of City Manager and direct City Attorney TJ Reed to oversee the 
negotiation of a contract along with the Mayor and Mr. Kuk. 
Voting yea: Seven             Voting nay: Perez              Absent: Kinsey            MOTION CARRIED  
 
Mr. Kuk thanked the Commission for their support and explained that it was his intent to accept the 
offer. 
 
 

 

DPS Director Rick Miller provided information on the bids received for mowing services.  Extensive 
discussion followed including the need for the outsourcing of mowing services, staffing levels, and 
related issues. 
 
The contractors being recommended to the Commission for mowing contracts for the 2023, 2024, and 
2025 mowing seasons are:   
• Cutter’s Edge Lawn Care & Maintenance LLC. – 20 sites in 2023, 19 sites in 2024, 23 sites in 
2025 plus 14 leaf pickup sites in 2023, 2024, and 2025 
• Grand Impressions Property Maintenance – 1 site in 2023, 2024, 2025  
• New Creations Landscape – 2 sites in 2023, 2024, 2025 
• Rickett Lawn Care – 14 sites in 2023, 15 sites in 2024, 12 sites in 2025 
• Straight Line Mowing – 1 site in 2023, 2024 
• Total Property Management – 6 sites in 2023, 2024, 2025 
 
Moved by Comm. Hile and seconded by Comm. Miller to accept the bids for Mowing / Trimming / 
Leaf Removal at City Owned Properties as presented.  
Voting yea: Smith, Hile, Miller, Mullins                                                       Absent: Kinsey 
Voting nay: Bir, Klinger, Harrington, Perez                                                MOTION DEFEATED  
   
City Staff will prepare additional materials for the next meeting including City costs, separate 
motions for different services, and estimated costs. 
 
 

 

 
City Engineer Barry Cox provided information on the bids to complete water main and sanitary sewer 
extensions between Kitson Avenue and N. Nottawa Street (M-66).  Discussion followed. 
 
 
 

 

20



Moved by Comm. Klinger and seconded by Comm. Perez to recommend the bid from Parrish 
Excavating, Inc. of Quincy, Michigan for the Bullard Industrial Park Utility Extension project in the 
amount of four hundred fourteen thousand, three hundred, fifty-one dollars ($414,351.00) to the 
LDFA. 
Voting yea: Eight             Voting nay: None               Absent: Kinsey            MOTION CARRIED  
   
 
City Engineer Barry Cox provided information on F&V Task Order 10a to complete the design of the 
Phase 1 improvements identified in the study to examine utility improvements in advance of the 
MDOT’s planned road rehabilitation projects on M-66.  Discussion followed. 
 
Moved by Comm. Klinger and seconded by Comm. Smith to approve Task Order #10a with Fleis and 
VandenBrink Engineering, Inc. for M-66 Utility Improvements Phase 1 design phase services in the 
amount of nineteen thousand dollars ($19,000.00) and authorize Interim City Manager Andrew Kuk 
to sign all necessary documents. 
Voting yea: Eight             Voting nay: None               Absent: Kinsey            MOTION CARRIED  
   
 

 

City Engineer Barry Cox provided information on the section of South Nottawa between the brick 
portion and South Street and potential pavement markings.  Currently, the drive lines have different 
widths due to a buffer lane only on the east side.  The recommendation was to decrease the widths of 
both drive lanes to ten feet and create a buffer on both sides, which may allow room for bicycles.  
These would not be official bike lanes.  Discussion followed. 
 
The City Commission had consensus to approve the changes to the pavement markings on South 
Nottawa Street as presented. 
 
 

 

Comm. Klinger announced his resignation from the City Commission for personal reasons.  He 
explained that he would remain in his position through the second regular meeting in April. 
 
The City Commission had consensus to bring back information related to a potential urban 
chicken ordinance at the next regular meeting. 
 

 

Moved by Comm. Hile and seconded by Comm. Klinger to go into Closed Session for discussion of 
the potential purchase of property. 
Voting yea: Bir, Klinger, Smith, Harrington, Hile, Perez, Miller, Mullins 
Voting nay: None                     Absent: Kinsey                      MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting recessed at 8:02 p.m. 
Meeting reconvened at 8:35 p.m. 
 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Kenneth D. Rhodes, City of Sturgis Clerk/Treasurer 

21



City of Sturgis 
City Commission 
Regular Meeting 

 
Agenda Item 8B 

22



 

23



  Page:    1  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE BILL PROOF - CITY OF STURGIS, MI   
  Date: 03/22/2023  Month: 06

Date        Check#    Vendor  Vendor Name                            Amount

Manual Checks
03-03-2023  PR0604M   00061   CITY OF STURGIS PAYROLL            348,594.53
03-03-2023  T15580M   00062   CITY OF STURGIS-EMPLOYEE INS        71,717.92
03-03-2023  T15581M   05588   ALERUS FINANCIAL/MERS TRANSFER       2,946.80
03-03-2023  T15582M   00065   DOYLE MEMBERSHIP TRANSFER            2,707.28
03-03-2023  T15583M   00063   CITY OF STURGIS TAX TRANSFER        19,418.42
03-03-2023  T15584M   05123   COMERICA BANK-INST TRUST SERV       35,617.23
03-03-2023  T15585M   03229   CITY OF STURGIS-WORKERS COMP         3,187.34
03-03-2023  T15586M   00064   INTL CITY MGMT ASSOC RETR CORP       8,303.79
03-01-2023  T15587M   06290   MEDPRO WASTE DISPOSAL LLC               26.25
03-02-2023  T15588M   06327   GOVHR USA LLC                       15,120.00
03-02-2023  T15589M   06327   GOVHR USA LLC                        7,560.00
03-02-2023  T15590M   05892   PAYCOR                                 994.06
03-31-2023  T15591M   05033   HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK           134,481.25
03-27-2023  T15592M   04389   FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS A              254.25
03-27-2023  T15593M   04389   FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS A               51.87
03-27-2023  T15594M   04389   FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS A               51.87
03-06-2023  T15595M   04197   MI PUBLIC POWER AGENCY             248,861.28
03-20-2023  T15596M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES                  95.30
03-21-2023  T15597M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES               2,772.03
03-21-2023  T15598M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES                 124.50
03-21-2023  T15599M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES                 487.96
03-20-2023  T15600M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES                  35.71
03-18-2023  T15601M   04389   FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS A              604.00
03-12-2023  T15602M   02909   SPECTRUM                               715.88
03-12-2023  T15603M   00512   CAMOCO FUEL SYSTEM                  13,765.60
03-24-2023  T15604M   04389   FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS A               53.36
02-17-2023  T15605M   04088   BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI        17,359.04
02-24-2023  T15606M   04088   BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI       125,091.22
03-09-2023  T15607M   00181   GORDON FOOD SERVICE                    585.33
03-27-2023  T15608M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES               2,003.11
03-27-2023  T15609M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES                 440.80
03-27-2023  T15610M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES                 163.07
03-27-2023  T15611M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES                 773.22
03-27-2023  T15612M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES               4,338.68
03-03-2023  T15613M   04088   BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI        27,747.48
03-01-2023  T15614M   06030   VERIZON CONNECT NWF INC                113.33
03-27-2023  T15615M   03770   MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES               1,024.43
03-02-2023  T15616M   01127   STATE OF MICHIGAN                      743.44
03-06-2023  T15617M   01127   STATE OF MICHIGAN                      198.31
03-12-2023  T15618M   00449   CENTURY BANK & TRUST                 3,402.13
03-10-2023  T15619M   04088   BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MI        24,096.39
03-09-2023  T15620M   04524   ALERUS FINANCIAL                     1,491.00
03-31-2023  T15621M   04389   FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS A              105.22
03-22-2023  T15622M   03858   FARMERS STATE BANK                   7,781.90

Automatic Checks
03-22-2023  245518    00110   A & K PRINTING & POOLS               3,000.00
03-22-2023  245519    00275   A B'S GLOVE & ABRASIVES INC            122.20
03-22-2023  245520    05894   A MEREDITH SCHNEIDER CO LLC         16,844.12
03-22-2023  245521    04266   ABONMARCHE CONSULTANTS INC           2,876.25
03-22-2023  245522    00066   ACTION QUICK PRINT PLUS                282.00
03-22-2023  245523    06156   AGILE TICKETING SOLUTIONS LLC          500.70

24



  Page:    2  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE BILL PROOF - CITY OF STURGIS, MI   
  Date: 03/22/2023  Month: 06

Date        Check#    Vendor  Vendor Name                            Amount

03-22-2023  245524    00332   ALEXANDER CHEMICAL CORP                 96.25
03-22-2023  245525    00296   ALLEN EDWIN HOMES                       51.46
03-22-2023  245526    06102   ALLIED FIRE SALES & SERVICE            456.00
03-22-2023  245527    00335   ALTEC INDUSTRIES, INC.               1,052.47
03-22-2023  245528    06119   AMAZON.COM SALES INC                 2,817.55
03-22-2023  245529    00296   ANA MARIA JOVEL LEIVA                   82.54
03-22-2023  245530    04982   ANCHOR SCIENTIFIC INC                  594.15
03-22-2023  245531    02058   APWA, MICHIGAN CHAPTER - MPSI          190.00
03-22-2023  245532    00624   AQUA BLAST CARWASH SYSTEMS INC         256.00
03-22-2023  245533    03576   ARROW SERVICES INC                      76.55
03-22-2023  245534    00296   AUBREY E KILGORE                        56.74
03-22-2023  245535    05462   AUTOZONE STORES LLC                     95.73
03-22-2023  245536    05656   AXON ENTERPRISE INC                  1,888.00
03-22-2023  245537    05868   B & B ENVIRONMENTAL SERV LLC         2,530.00
03-22-2023  245538    05719   BAKER'S BODY SHOP LLC                1,626.20
03-22-2023  245539    06117   BENITA ANN LEWIS                        30.00
03-22-2023  245540    04637   BENTON HARBOR                          300.00
03-22-2023  245541    00041   BETHANY HAGNER                         225.00
03-22-2023  245542    00132   BOFA INC                             2,908.14
03-22-2023  245543    00005   BOGEN CONCRETE INC                     675.00
03-22-2023  245544    00296   BROOKE L BOOCHER                        14.34
03-22-2023  245545    05634   BRUCE ALLEN                             50.00
03-22-2023  245546    05125   CANNON TECHNOLOGIES                 25,252.72
03-22-2023  245547    00315   CENTURYLINK                             33.84
03-22-2023  245548    06296   CIVICPLUS LLC                          375.00
03-22-2023  245549    03605   COLDSPRING GRANITE COMPANY             286.20
03-22-2023  245550    06000   INDIANA EMERGENCY SERVICE PROD      23,274.26
03-22-2023  245551    05108   CORRIGAN OIL CO                         53.77
03-22-2023  245552    06325   COTTIN'S HARDWARE                      321.94
03-22-2023  245553    00041   CRYSTAL MINGUS                          36.00
03-22-2023  245554    06158   CULLIGAN WATER OF STURGIS              249.00
03-22-2023  245555    01119   DAVID W LUDDERS                         49.60
03-22-2023  245556    00296   DEBRA A BLACK                          100.00
03-22-2023  245557    00296   DOROTHY C MATHIAK                       41.26
03-22-2023  245558    03095   MARY DRESSER                            70.00
03-22-2023  245559    00364   CAROL DUSTIN                           320.00
03-22-2023  245560    01403   GEORGE EARL                             20.00
03-22-2023  245561    06014   EGANIX INC                             840.00
03-22-2023  245562    00166   ELHORN ENGINEERING CO                1,345.00
03-22-2023  245563    03929   EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTS INC         389.23
03-22-2023  245564    06244   EMERGENCY VEHICLES PLUS              3,535.70
03-22-2023  245565    04955   ENVIRO-CLEAN                         2,784.00
03-22-2023  245566    05434   F & F GRINDING SERVICE                  50.00
03-22-2023  245567    05929   FACTUAL DATA                            50.00
03-22-2023  245568    00169   FASTENAL COMPANY                        48.50
03-22-2023  245569    05151   FAWN RIVER MECHANICAL LLC            1,310.64
03-22-2023  245570    05490   FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386            2,352.41
03-22-2023  245571    00776   FLEIS & VANDENBRINK                  1,770.00
03-22-2023  245572    06287   FOCAL POINT STUDIOS                  5,000.00
03-22-2023  245573    04446   FRANK MILLER & SONS                    913.00
03-22-2023  245574    06378   GABRIDGE N&P LLC                    12,500.00
03-22-2023  245575    06327   GOVHR USA LLC                          250.00
03-22-2023  245576    00183   W W GRAINGER INC                     1,795.06

25



  Page:    3  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE BILL PROOF - CITY OF STURGIS, MI   
  Date: 03/22/2023  Month: 06

Date        Check#    Vendor  Vendor Name                            Amount

03-22-2023  245577    01436   GRIFFITH ELECTRIC LLC                  400.00
03-22-2023  245578    06219   HAVILAND PRODUCTS COMPANY            2,592.40
03-22-2023  245579    05349   HEATHER SWINSICK                       100.00
03-22-2023  245580    03515   HYDROCORP                            4,625.50
03-22-2023  245581    05171   STUART C IRBY CO                     1,035.00
03-22-2023  245582    04543   J & B MEDICAL SUPPLY INC               290.92
03-22-2023  245583    00296   JAMES C GREEN                           58.90
03-22-2023  245584    06380   JAMIE DRAKE MUSIC                    2,000.00
03-22-2023  245585    06199   JANSEN PLUMBING, HEATING &             213.00
03-22-2023  245586    06379   JM TEST SYSTEMS LLC                    535.00
03-22-2023  245587    06314   JODIE M JOHNSON                         40.00
03-22-2023  245588    05842   JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL                 1,085.22
03-22-2023  245589    00889   KENTON KELLEY                           54.00
03-22-2023  245590    04238   MICHELE KELLEY                         297.00
03-22-2023  245591    00020   KENDRICK STATIONERS INC                111.08
03-22-2023  245592    01101   JANENE KOSMAN                          120.00
03-22-2023  245593    00581   KRONTZ GENERAL MACHINE & TOOL           27.28
03-22-2023  245594    00212   KSS ENTERPRISES                      1,273.52
03-22-2023  245595    00296   LARRY CRITES                            23.13
03-22-2023  245596    00216   LAWSON PRODUCTS INC                    112.49
03-22-2023  245597    00394   LAWSON-FISHER ASSOCIATES PC         11,175.52
03-22-2023  245598    03101   LERMA INC                               60.00
03-22-2023  245599    00220   LITHO PRINTERS INC                     392.13
03-22-2023  245600    05906   BJ MALLEN                              300.00
03-22-2023  245601    06087   MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY, LLC           5.00
03-22-2023  245602    04817   MICHIANA RECYCLING & DISPOSAL          951.48
03-22-2023  245603    03774   STATE OF MICHIGAN                      390.00
03-22-2023  245604    03774   STATE OF MICHIGAN                      216.25
03-22-2023  245605    03774   STATE OF MICHIGAN                      198.00
03-22-2023  245606    00702   MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE            1,520.00
03-22-2023  245607    00024   STATE OF MICHIGAN - MDOT            25,950.97
03-22-2023  245608    05121   MICKEY'S LINEN                         232.06
03-22-2023  245609    06026   MID-CITY SUPPLY CO INC                 168.77
03-22-2023  245610    04730   MILLER'S SIGN CO INC                   547.82
03-22-2023  245611    05051   MILSOFT UTILITY SOLUTIONS              501.56
03-22-2023  245612    05102   McLEAN ENGINEERING CO               18,022.75
03-22-2023  245613    06069   NAPA AUTO PARTS                        888.68
03-22-2023  245614    00255   NIBLOCK EXCAVATING INC               7,842.15
03-22-2023  245615    05932   O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC           19.48
03-22-2023  245616    05091   PAXXO (USA) INC                        417.57
03-22-2023  245617    00296   PEARLIE R SCOTT                         67.71
03-22-2023  245618    05042   PLANT GROWTH MANAGEMENT SYSTEM       5,600.40
03-22-2023  245619    06254   PLAYGROUND GUARDIAN LLC                500.00
03-22-2023  245620    00033   POSTNET POSTAL & BUSINESS              123.71
03-22-2023  245621    00031   POWER SYSTEM ENGINEERING INC.       10,358.02
03-22-2023  245622    03091   PRIME QUALITY ELECTRIC LLC             555.22
03-22-2023  245623    04481   PROF SPORTS SPECIFIC TRAINING          270.00
03-22-2023  245624    05739   RENEWABLE WORLD ENERGIES LLC         6,619.42
03-22-2023  245625    00035   RESCO                                3,387.88
03-22-2023  245626    06038   REVOLUTION HEALTH, P.C.                265.00
03-22-2023  245627    05379   S & S INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY                723.34
03-22-2023  245628    00276   SAFETY SERVICES INC                    148.62
03-22-2023  245629    05765   SELKING INTERNATIONAL                2,028.29

26



  Page:    4  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE BILL PROOF - CITY OF STURGIS, MI   
  Date: 03/22/2023  Month: 06

Date        Check#    Vendor  Vendor Name                            Amount

03-22-2023  245630    02179   SPRINT                                 577.25
03-22-2023  245631    00488   STATE SYSTEMS RADIO INC                195.00
03-22-2023  245632    00296   STERLING RELOCATION                     42.53
03-22-2023  245633    00507   STURGIS OVERHEAD DOOR & LADDER          85.00
03-22-2023  245634    04140   SWICK BROADCASTING COMPANY             200.00
03-22-2023  245635    05682   ROBERT TAYLOR                          105.00
03-22-2023  245636    00046   TELE-RAD INC                           310.00
03-22-2023  245637    06151   THE NAKED SHIRT CUSTOM PRINTNG          50.00
03-22-2023  245638    00047   CITY OF THREE RIVERS                   550.00
03-22-2023  245639    05999   TRI STATE CUSTOM AND OFFROAD           455.00
03-22-2023  245640    06247   UNCONVENTIONAL SOLUTIONS INC           229.79
03-22-2023  245641    04326   USA BLUEBOOK                           520.63
03-22-2023  245642    03331   UTILITIES INSTRUMENTATION SERV       4,083.94
03-22-2023  245643    05745   ERICA VARGAS SARCO                     120.00
03-22-2023  245644    04453   VERIZON WIRELESS                     2,548.16
03-22-2023  245645    05196   WALTER KIDDE PORTABLE EQUIP          1,488.70
03-22-2023  245646    03511   WASTE MANAGEMENT                     1,892.47
03-22-2023  245647    06339   WILLIAMS TREE CO LLC                 5,575.00
03-22-2023  245648    05738   WIN-911 SOFTWARE                     2,592.00
03-22-2023  245649    02948   WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC       1,574.70
03-22-2023  245650    06107   YEOMAN, TALIA                           90.00
03-22-2023  245651    05634   ZETA METZGER                            65.00
03-22-2023  D01956    04732   ALTA EQUIPMENT COMPANY                 484.67
03-22-2023  D01957    00337   AMERICAN PUBLIC POWER ASSOC            250.68
03-22-2023  D01958    02983   CINTAS LOCATION #351                 1,876.45
03-22-2023  D01959    00157   JACK DOHENY COMPANIES INC              718.44
03-22-2023  D01960    00019   KENDALL ELECTRIC INC                    47.24
03-22-2023  D01961    03944   LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC              258.26
03-22-2023  D01962    06250   MARANA GROUP                         5,257.06
03-22-2023  D01963    01080   NYE UNIFORM CO                         514.01
03-22-2023  D01964    04792   VILLA ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT         200.00

Manual Total                                                  $1,136,006.58
Automatic Total                                                 $273,513.74

Grand Total                                                   $1,409,520.32

27



GENERAL $154,475.51

MAJOR STREET 9,467.07

LOCAL STREET 8,544.48

CEMETERY 5,420.15

DDA 810.39

AIRPORT 0.00

BUILDING 3,311.27

STURGES-YOUNG CENTER FOR THE ARTS 5,400.63

RECREATION 3,708.63

DOYLE RECREATION CENTER 9,618.00

AMBULANCE 11,827.47

ELECTRIC 108,444.63

SEWER 14,841.12

WATER 7,109.34

MOTOR VEHICLE 5,615.84

Payroll Sub-Total $348,594.53

PAYROLL DISBURSEMENT

FOR PAYROLL ENDING 02/26/2023

PR0604M PAYROLL DATE 03/03/2023

28



City of Sturgis 
City Commission 
Regular Meeting 

 
Agenda Item 9A 

29



 

30



Cutter's Grasshopper New Rickett's Straight Line Total Property Triple R
Exhibit Specifications Edge Lawn Care Creations Lawn Service Mowing Mgmt Lawn Service

2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
AA Memorial Dr/Nottawa ROW 69.50$                98.00$                90.00$                35.93$                     33.57$                 
BB Paramount Site 95.00$                110.00$              195.00$              87.00$                160.00$              190.00$              175.00$              101.58$                   (14.58)$                 N/A 87.00$                   87.00$                   94.00$                  
CC N Jefferson Retention Basin 24.00$                38.50$                28.00$                60.00$                65.00$                24.97$                     (0.97)$                   N/A 24.00$                   25.00$                   26.00$                  
DD Mich St. Lift Station 26.00$                28.50$                25.00$                30.00$                55.00$                26.00$                   25.00$                   26.00$                   26.00$                  
EE Rest Stop Park/South St. Ext 45.00$                64.50$                38.50$                65.00$                40.00$                   38.50$                   38.50$                   42.00$                  
FF Compost Site 45.00$                48.50$                65.00$                52.00$                   45.00$                   45.00$                   45.00$                  
GG City Subdivision 1 / Site N 20.00$                50.00$                64.50$                28.00$                39.00$                60.00$                65.00$                20.00$                   20.00$                   20.00$                   20.00$                  
HH City Hall/Library 78.00$                102.00$              95.00$                75.00$                   78.00$                   78.00$                   85.00$                  
JJ City Parking Lot terraces 77.00$                100.00$              80.00$                   77.00$                   77.00$                   84.00$                  
KK FranksPark 520.00$              636.00$              574.00$              800.00$              395.00$                   125.00$                N/A
LL Oaklawn Park 525.00$              500.00$              600.00$              436.00$                   64.00$                  N/A
MM Memorial Park 225.00$              169.00$              168.00$              200.00$              148.98$                168.00$                168.00$                180.00$               
NN Langrick Park 58.00$                120.00$              94.00$                79.00$                80.00$                58.00$                   58.00$                   59.00$                   60.00$                  
PP Arkwrights/Free Church Park 75.00$                72.00$                112.00$              100.00$              85.00$                   72.00$                   72.00$                   75.00$                  
QQ Shadowlawn Park 24.00$                28.00$                29.00$                50.00$                65.00$                24.00$                   24.00$                   24.00$                   25.00$                  
RR Pioneer Park 25.00$                28.00$                35.00$                60.00$                25.00$                   25.00$                   25.00$                   26.00$                  
SS Doyle Community Center 130.00$              124.00$              165.00$              118.98$                124.00$                124.00$                138.00$               
TT City Sub II / Lot #39 18.00$                28.00$                28.00$                50.00$                65.00$                18.00$                   18.00$                   19.00$                   20.00$                  
UU Wall Fields 488.00$              298.49$              600.00$              298.49$                298.49$                298.49$                298.49$               
VV Spence Softball Complex 675.00$              715.00$              700.00$              328.00$                   347.00$               
WW Fawn River Rd. lift Station 26.00$                28.00$                30.00$                55.00$                26.00$                   26.00$                   26.00$                   26.00$                  
XX DPS Maintenance Bldg. 27.00$                38.00$                45.00$                27.00$                   27.00$                   28.00$                   29.00$                  
YY Thurston Woods Park 800.00$              454.00$                   346.00$               
ZZ 208 N. Prospect St. 24.00$                50.00$                64.50$                44.00$                31.00$                50.00$                65.00$                24.00$                   24.00$                   24.00$                   24.00$                  
AAA 101 S. Jefferson (Depot RR Bldg.) 82.50$                40.00$                90.00$                   40.00$                   45.00$                   45.00$                  
BBB 606 W. Chicago Rd. 34.00$                50.00$                69.00$                65.00$                65.00$                34.00$                   34.00$                   34.00$                   35.00$                  
CCC 604 N. Prospect 25.00$                26.50$                28.00$                30.00$                60.00$                25.00$                   25.00$                   25.00$                   25.00$                  
DDD 305 W. West  22.00$                24.50$                28.00$                30.00$                60.00$                22.00$                   22.00$                   23.00$                   24.00$                  
EEE 805.5 E. Main  25.00$                27.50$                28.00$                30.00$                60.00$                25.00$                   25.00$                   25.00$                   25.00$                  
FFF 2855 S Centerville Rd. 50.00$                58.00$                69.00$                70.00$                50.00$                   50.00$                   50.00$                   50.00$                  

Bid award recommendation
No bid recommendation (City to maintain)
Low bid for non‐recommended site
Price increase over previous year
Price decrease over previous year

DPS Mowing Bid Comparison Sheet UPDATED
2023 Bids with 2023‐2025 Summary

2024 Bid Price 2025 Bid Price2023 Bid Price
City Cost 
to Mow

Diff per 
Mow

2022 Price

31



Cutter's Grasshopper New Rickett's Straight Line Total Property Triple R
Exhibit Specifications Edge Lawn Care Creations Lawn Service Mowing Mgmt Lawn Service

2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
AA Memorial Dr/Nottawa ROW 69.50$                98.00$                100.00$             
BB Paramount Site 100.00$              120.00$              195.00$              87.00$                165.00$              200.00$              185.00$              167.00$                   87.00$                  
CC N Jefferson Retention Basin 25.00$                38.50$                30.00$                65.00$                67.00$                25.00$                  
DD Mich St. Lift Station 26.00$                28.50$                26.00$                35.00$                57.00$                26.00$                  
EE Rest Stop Park/South St. Ext 45.00$                64.50$                38.50$                70.00$                38.50$                  
FF Compost Site 45.00$                48.50$                70.00$                45.00$                  
GG City Subdivision 1 / Site N 20.00$                55.00$                64.50$                28.00$                41.00$                65.00$                67.00$                20.00$                  
HH City Hall/Library 78.00$                104.00$              105.00$              78.00$                  
JJ City Parking Lot terraces 77.00$                105.00$              77.00$                  
KK FranksPark 520.00$              646.00$              574.00$              870.00$              395.00$                   125.00$               
LL Oaklawn Park 525.00$              510.00$              640.00$              436.00$                   74.00$                 
MM Memorial Park 225.00$              179.00$              168.00$              215.00$              168.00$               
NN Langrick Park 59.00$                130.00$              94.00$                81.00$                90.00$                59.00$                  
PP Arkwrights/Free Church Park 75.00$                72.00$                116.00$              105.00$              72.00$                  
QQ Shadowlawn Park 24.00$                28.00$                31.00$                55.00$                67.00$                24.00$                  
RR Pioneer Park 25.00$                28.00$                35.00$                62.00$                25.00$                  
SS Doyle Community Center 140.00$              124.00$              175.00$              124.00$               
TT City Sub II / Site 39 19.00$                28.00$                30.00$                55.00$                67.00$                19.00$                  
UU Wall Fields 489.00$              298.49$              640.00$              298.49$               
VV Spence Softball Complex 675.00$              765.00$              725.00$              328.00$                   347.00$               
WW Fawn River Rd. lift Station 26.00$                28.00$                35.00$                57.00$                26.00$                  
XX DPS Maintenance Bldg. 28.00$                38.00$                45.00$                28.00$                  
YY Thurston Woods Park 850.00$              454.00$                   396.00$               
ZZ 208 N. Prospect St. 24.00$                55.00$                64.50$                44.00$                33.00$                50.00$                67.00$                24.00$                  
AAA 101 S. Jefferson 82.50$                45.00$                45.00$                  
BBB 606 W. Chicago Rd. 34.00$                50.00$                72.00$                65.00$                67.00$                34.00$                  
CCC 604 N. Prospect 25.00$                26.50$                30.00$                35.00$                62.00$                25.00$                  
DDD 305 W. West  23.00$                24.50$                30.00$                35.00$                62.00$                23.00$                  
EEE 805.5 E. Main  25.00$                27.50$                30.00$                35.00$                62.00$                25.00$                  
FFF 2855 S Centerville Rd. 50.00$                58.00$                72.00$                75.00$                50.00$                  

Bid award recommendation
No bid recommendation (City to maintain)
Low bid for non‐recommended site

City Cost 
to Mow

Diff per 
Mow

2024 Bid Price

2024 Bids
DPS Mowing Bid Comparison Sheet UPDATED

32



Cutter's Grasshopper New Rickett's Straight Line Total Property Triple R
Exhibit Specifications Edge Lawn Care Creations Lawn Service Mowing Mgmt Lawn Service

2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025
AA Memorial Dr/Nottawa ROW 69.50$                106.00$              105.00$             
BB Paramount Site 105.00$              130.00$              195.00$              94.00$                170.00$              210.00$              195.00$              167.00$                   94.00$                  
CC N Jefferson Retention Basin 26.00$                42.00$                32.00$                65.00$                69.00$                26.00$                  
DD Mich St. Lift Station 26.00$                31.00$                27.00$                35.00$                59.00$                26.00$                  
EE Rest Stop Park/South St. Ext 45.00$                64.50$                42.00$                70.00$                42.00$                  
FF Compost Site 45.00$                53.00$                75.00$                45.00$                  
GG City Subdivision 1 / Site N 20.00$                60.00$                64.50$                31.00$                43.00$                65.00$                69.00$                20.00$                  
HH City Hall/Library 85.00$                106.00$              110.00$              85.00$                  
JJ City Parking Lot terraces 84.00$                110.00$              84.00$                  
KK FranksPark 520.00$              656.00$              610.00$              915.00$              395.00$                   125.00$               
LL Oaklawn Park 525.00$              520.00$              680.00$              436.00$                   94.00$                 
MM Memorial Park 225.00$              189.00$              180.00$              230.00$              180.00$               
NN Langrick Park 60.00$                140.00$              100.00$              83.00$                90.00$                60.00$                  
PP Arkwrights/Free Church Park 75.00$                80.00$                120.00$              110.00$              75.00$                  
QQ Shadowlawn Park 25.00$                31.00$                33.00$                55.00$                69.00$                25.00$                  
RR Pioneer Park 26.00$                31.00$                40.00$                64.00$                26.00$                  
SS Doyle Community Center 150.00$              138.00$              180.00$              138.00$               
TT City Sub II / Site 39 20.00$                31.00$                32.00$                55.00$                69.00$                20.00$                  
UU Wall Fields 490.00$              298.49$              680.00$              298.49$               
VV Spence Softball Complex 675.00$              790.00$              750.00$              328.00$                   347.00$               
WW Fawn River Rd. lift Station 26.00$                31.00$                35.00$                59.00$                26.00$                  
XX DPS Maintenance Bldg. 29.00$                42.00$                50.00$                29.00$                  
YY Thurston Woods Park 875.00$              454.00$                   421.00$               
ZZ 208 N. Prospect St. 24.00$                60.00$                64.50$                49.00$                35.00$                55.00$                69.00$                24.00$                  
AAA 101 S. Jefferson 90.00$                45.00$                45.00$                  
BBB 606 W. Chicago Rd. 35.00$                56.00$                75.00$                70.00$                69.00$                35.00$                  
CCC 604 N. Prospect 25.00$                30.00$                31.00$                35.00$                64.00$                25.00$                  
DDD 305 W. West  24.00$                29.00$                31.00$                35.00$                64.00$                24.00$                  
EEE 805.5 E. Main  25.00$                31.00$                31.00$                35.00$                64.00$                25.00$                  
FFF 2855 S Centerville Rd. 50.00$                64.00$                74.00$                75.00$                50.00$                  

Bid award recommendation
No bid recommendation (City to maintain)
Low bid for non‐recommended site

DPS Mowing Bid Comparison Sheet UPDATED
2025 Bids

City Cost 
to Mow

Diff per 
Mow

2025 Bid Price

33



Cutter's Grasshopper Rickett's
Exhibit Specifications Edge Lawn Care Lawn Service

2023 2023 2023
AA Memorial Dr/Nottawa ROW 150.00$          
BB Paramount Site $70 per man hr 100.00$          
CC N Jefferson Retention Basin $70 per man hr 85.00$             
DD Mich St. Lift Station 35.00$         60.00$             
EE Rest Stop Park/South St. Ext 95.00$         75.00$             
FF Compost Site 70.00$             
GG City Subdivision 1 / Site N 40.00$         $70 per man hr 50.00$             
HH City Hall/Library 75.00$             
JJ City Parking Lot terraces 85.00$             
KK FranksPark $70 per man hr 600.00$           TBD
LL Oaklawn Park $70 per man hr

MM Memorial Park $70 per man hr 680.00$           TBD
NN Langrick Park 150.00$       $70 per man hr 300.00$          
PP Arkwrights/Free Church Park 150.00$       160.00$          
QQ Shadowlawn Park 48.00$         70.00$             
RR Pioneer Park 50.00$         70.00$             
SS Doyle Community Center $70 per man hr 180.00$           TBD
TT City Sub II / Lot #39 40.00$         65.00$             
UU Wall Fields
VV Spence Softball Complex
WW Fawn River Rd. lift Station 52.00$         65.00$             
XX DPS Maintenance Bldg. 54.00$         45.00$             
YY Thurston Woods Park $70 per man hr

ZZ 208 N. Prospect St. 48.00$         $70 per man hr 75.00$             
AAA 101 S. Jefferson (Depot RR Bldg.) 110.00$          
BBB 606 W. Chicago Rd. 65.00$         75.00$             
CCC 604 N. Prospect 48.00$         75.00$             
DDD 305 W. West  48.00$         60.00$             
EEE 805.5 E. Main  50.00$         75.00$             
FFF 2855 S Centerville Rd. 100.00$       120.00$          

DPS Leaf Pick‐up Bid Comparison Sheet

34



Cutter's Grasshopper Rickett's
Exhibit Specifications Edge Lawn Care Lawn Service

2024 2024 2024
AA Memorial Dr/Nottawa ROW 160.00$          
BB Paramount Site $75 per man hr 100.00$          
CC N Jefferson Retention Basin $75 per man hr 85.00$             
DD Mich St. Lift Station 35.00$         60.00$             
EE Rest Stop Park/South St. Ext 95.00$         75.00$             
FF Compost Site 70.00$             
GG City Subdivision 1 / Site N 40.00$         $75 per man hr 50.00$             
HH City Hall/Library 75.00$             
JJ City Parking Lot terraces 85.00$             
KK FranksPark $75 per man hr 630.00$           TBD
LL Oaklawn Park $75 per man hr

MM Memorial Park $75 per man hr 690.00$           TBD
NN Langrick Park 150.00$       $75 per man hr 300.00$          
PP Arkwrights/Free Church Park 150.00$       160.00$          
QQ Shadowlawn Park 50.00$         70.00$             
RR Pioneer Park 52.00$         70.00$             
SS Doyle Community Center $75 per man hr 180.00$           TBD
TT City Sub II / Lot #39 40.00$         65.00$             
UU Wall Fields
VV Spence Softball Complex
WW Fawn River Rd. lift Station 52.00$         65.00$             
XX DPS Maintenance Bldg. 56.00$         45.00$             
YY Thurston Woods Park $75 per man hr

ZZ 208 N. Prospect St. 50.00$         $75 per man hr 75.00$             
AAA 101 S. Jefferson (Depot RR Bldg.) 110.00$          
BBB 606 W. Chicago Rd. 65.00$         75.00$             
CCC 604 N. Prospect 48.00$         75.00$             
DDD 305 W. West  48.00$         60.00$             
EEE 805.5 E. Main  50.00$         75.00$             
FFF 2855 S Centerville Rd. 100.00$       125.00$          

DPS Leaf Pick‐up Bid Comparison Sheet

35



Cutter's Grasshopper Rickett's
Exhibit Specifications Edge Lawn Care Lawn Service

2025 2025 2025
AA Memorial Dr/Nottawa ROW 170.00$          
BB Paramount Site $80 per man hr 110.00$          
CC N Jefferson Retention Basin $80 per man hr 93.00$             
DD Mich St. Lift Station 35.00$         66.00$             
EE Rest Stop Park/South St. Ext 105.00$       82.00$             
FF Compost Site 77.00$             
GG City Subdivision 1 / Site N 40.00$         $80 per man hr 55.00$             
HH City Hall/Library 82.00$             
JJ City Parking Lot terraces 93.00$             
KK FranksPark $80 per man hr 660.00$           TBD
LL Oaklawn Park $80 per man hr

MM Memorial Park $80 per man hr 690.00$           TBD
NN Langrick Park 150.00$       $80 per man hr 330.00$          
PP Arkwrights/Free Church Park 150.00$       176.00$          
QQ Shadowlawn Park 52.00$         77.00$             
RR Pioneer Park 54.00$         77.00$             
SS Doyle Community Center $80 per man hr 200.00$           TBD
TT City Sub II / Lot #39 40.00$         72.00$             
UU Wall Fields
VV Spence Softball Complex
WW Fawn River Rd. lift Station 52.00$         71.00$             
XX DPS Maintenance Bldg. 58.00$         45.00$             
YY Thurston Woods Park $80 per man hr

ZZ 208 N. Prospect St. 50.00$         $80 per man hr 82.00$             
AAA 101 S. Jefferson (Depot RR Bldg.) 120.00$          
BBB 606 W. Chicago Rd. 65.00$         82.00$             
CCC 604 N. Prospect 48.00$         82.00$             
DDD 305 W. West  48.00$         66.00$             
EEE 805.5 E. Main  50.00$         82.00$             
FFF 2855 S Centerville Rd. 100.00$       135.00$          

DPS Leaf Pick‐up Bid Comparison Sheet

36



Cutter's Grand Grasshopper New Creations Rickett's Total Property Triple R

Exhibit Specifications Edge Impressions Lawn Care Landscape Mgmt Lawn Service Mgmt Lawn Service
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023

A Southeast Substation 28.00$                       32.00$                       55.00$                       31.00$                       28.00$                       29.00$                       29.00$                       
B Prairie Substation 23.00$                       22.50$                       35.00$                       60.00$                       22.75$                       22.50$                       22.50$                       24.00$                       
D Franks Substation 60.00$                       
E Eastside Substation 24.00$                       31.00$                       55.00$                       65.00$                       31.00$                       24.00$                       24.00$                       24.00$                       
F Balk Substation 20.00$                       25.00$                       35.00$                       55.00$                       20.00$                       20.00$                       20.00$                       20.00$                       
G Shimmel Substation 20.00$                       25.00$                       25.00$                       45.00$                       20.00$                       20.00$                       20.00$                       20.00$                       
J N. Maple Ave. 26.00$                       26.50$                       55.00$                       25.00$                       26.00$                       26.50$                       29.00$                       
L Meter Shop 29.00$                       28.50$                       60.00$                       29.00$                       28.50$                       28.50$                       30.00$                       
M Retention Pond 185.00$                    250.00$                    195.00$                    174.00$                    135.00$                    250.00$                    181.00$                    135.00$                    140.00$                    140.00$                    
N Covered Bridge Park 84.50$                       168.00$                    135.00$                    170.00$                    84.50$                       84.50$                       84.50$                       
P Earthen Embankment 74.50$                       144.00$                    60.00$                       65.00$                       144.00$                    60.00$                       65.00$                       65.00$                       
Q Pahl Point Park 40.00$                       39.50$                       58.00$                       70.00$                       38.00$                       39.50$                       39.50$                       39.50$                       
R Hydro Area 48.00$                       50.00$                       48.00$                       48.00$                       48.00$                       53.00$                       
S Hydro Rentals 120.00$                    88.00$                       130.00$                    78.00$                       88.00$                       88.00$                       98.00$                       
T Grand Point Meters 35.00$                       39.50$                       41.00$                       60.00$                       70.00$                       32.00$                       35.00$                       37.00$                       39.00$                       

C Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 68.00$                       90.00$                       70.00$                       68.00$                       68.00$                       74.00$                       
(Diesel Plt) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 380.00$                    300.00$                    365.00$                    300.00$                    320.00$                    320.00$                    

H Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 30.00$                       75.00$                       31.00$                       30.00$                       30.00$                       34.00$                       
(Auditorium) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 360.00$                    250.00$                    250.00$                    250.00$                    275.00$                    300.00$                    

K Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 26.00$                       60.00$                       27.00$                       26.00$                       26.00$                       29.00$                       
(206 E. West) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 360.00$                    240.00$                    250.00$                    240.00$                    250.00$                    260.00$                    

Bid award recommendation
No bid
Price increase over previous year
Price decrease over previous year

Electric Mowing Bid Comparison Sheet

2024 Bid Price 2025 Bid Price

 Bids not awarded to the same bidder all three years.  Site J awarded to Cutter's Edge in '23, and Rickett's Lawn Service in '24 and '25.  Site L 
awarded to Rickett's Lawn Service in '23 and '24, and awarded to Cutter's Edge in '25 

2023 Bids with 2023-2025 Summary

2022 Price 2023 Bid Price

37



Cutter's Grand Grasshopper New Creations Rickett's Total Property Triple R

Exhibit Specifications Edge Impressions Lawn Care Landscape Mgmt Lawn Service Mgmt Lawn Service
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

A Southeast Substation 29.00$                       32.00$                       60.00$                       29.00$                       
B Prairie Substation 24.00$                       22.50$                       40.00$                       62.00$                       22.50$                       
D Franks Substation 65.00$                       
E Eastside Substation 24.00$                       31.00$                       60.00$                       67.00$                       24.00$                       
F Balk Substation 20.00$                       25.00$                       40.00$                       57.00$                       20.00$                       
G Shimmel Substation 20.00$                       25.00$                       30.00$                       47.00$                       20.00$                       
J N. Maple Ave. 28.00$                       26.50$                       60.00$                       26.50$                       
L Meter Shop 29.00$                       28.50$                       65.00$                       28.50$                       
M Retention Pond 185.00$                     260.00$                     195.00$                     174.00$                     140.00$                     260.00$                     140.00$                     
N Covered Bridge Park 84.50$                       168.00$                     150.00$                     84.50$                       
P Earthen Embankment 74.50$                       144.00$                     65.00$                       67.00$                       65.00$                       
Q Pahl Point Park 42.00$                       39.50$                       58.00$                       75.00$                       39.50$                       
R Hydro Area 48.00$                       55.00$                       48.00$                       
S Hydro Rentals 122.00$                     88.00$                       140.00$                     88.00$                       
T Grand Point Meters 37.00$                       39.50$                       41.00$                       65.00$                       72.00$                       37.00$                       

C Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 68.00$                       100.00$                     68.00$                       
(Diesel Plt) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 390.00$                     320.00$                     320.00$                     

H Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 30.00$                       80.00$                       30.00$                       
(Auditorium) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 370.00$                     275.00$                     275.00$                     

K Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 26.00$                       75.00$                       26.00$                       
(206 E. West) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 370.00$                     250.00$                     250.00$                     

Bid award recommendation
No bid

2024 Bid Price

Electric Mowing Bid Comparison Sheet
2024 Bids

38



Cutter's Grand Grasshopper New Creations Rickett's Total Property Triple R

Exhibit Specifications Edge Impressions Lawn Care Landscape Mgmt Lawn Service Mgmt Lawn Service
2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025

A Southeast Substation 29.00$                       36.00$                       62.00$                       29.00$                       
B Prairie Substation 24.00$                       25.50$                       40.00$                       64.00$                       24.00$                       
D Franks Substation 70.00$                       
E Eastside Substation 24.00$                       36.00$                       62.00$                       69.00$                       24.00$                       
F Balk Substation 20.00$                       28.00$                       40.00$                       59.00$                       20.00$                       
G Shimmel Substation 20.00$                       28.00$                       30.00$                       49.00$                       20.00$                       
J N. Maple Ave. 29.00$                       29.00$                       65.00$                       29.00$                       
L Meter Shop 30.00$                       32.00$                       70.00$                       30.00$                       
M Retention Pond 185.00$                     270.00$                     195.00$                     190.00$                     140.00$                     270.00$                     140.00$                     
N Covered Bridge Park 84.50$                       185.00$                     160.00$                     84.50$                       
P Earthen Embankment 74.50$                       160.00$                     65.00$                       69.00$                       65.00$                       
Q Pahl Point Park 45.00$                       39.50$                       63.00$                       75.00$                       39.50$                       
R Hydro Area 53.00$                       60.00$                       53.00$                       
S Hydro Rentals 125.00$                     98.00$                       150.00$                     98.00$                       
T Grand Point Meters 39.00$                       39.50$                       46.00$                       70.00$                       74.00$                       39.00$                       

C Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 74.00$                       110.00$                     74.00$                       
(Diesel Plt) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 405.00$                     320.00$                     320.00$                     

H Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 34.00$                       85.00$                       34.00$                       
(Auditorium) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 385.00$                     300.00$                     300.00$                     

K Mowing & Trimming along with Removal of Leaves /Per Mow 29.00$                       85.00$                       29.00$                       
(206 E. West) **Fertilizing - Weed Control - Grub Treatments [Price per year] 385.00$                     260.00$                     260.00$                     

Bid award recommendation
No bid

2025 Bid Price

2025 Bids
Electric Mowing Bid Comparison Sheet

39



Contract Years 2012 2022 A

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2022 A 2023 2024 2025
Contracted Not Bid

375.00$         375.00$         375.00$         395.00$         395.00$         849.99$         849.99$         899.87$         * 1,041.97$     29
City Not Bid
248.00$         * * 2,945.82$     2,523.00$     2,523.00$     2,726.00$     29
City Not Bid
180.00$         164.29$         164.29$         * * 724.13$         696.00$         725.00$         754.00$         29
City Not Bid
97.00$           204.89$         186.38$         232.00$         232.00$         232.00$         725.00$         725.00$         754.00$         725.00$         754.00$         754.00$         29

City Not Bid
324.00$         329.96$         557.33$         435.00$         435.00$         435.00$         1,102.00$     1,102.00$     1,160.00$     1,116.50$     1,116.50$     1,218.00$     29

Contracted Not Bid
400.00$         400.00$         400.00$         540.00$         540.00$         522.00$         522.00$         522.00$         1,413.75$     1,413.75$     1,508.00$     1,305.00$     1,305.00$     1,305.00$     29
City Not Bid
205.00$         391.61$         391.61$         541.33$         541.33$         580.00$         551.00$         551.00$         580.00$         580.00$         580.00$         580.00$         29

Contracted Not Bid
650.00$         650.00$         650.00$         580.00$         580.00$         1,537.00$     1,537.00$     1,595.00$     2,022.75$     2,022.75$     2,175.00$     2,262.00$     2,262.00$     2,465.00$     29

Contracted Not Bid
520.00$         500.00$         500.00$         580.00$         580.00$         2,059.00$     2,059.00$     2,175.00$     2,167.75$     2,167.75$     2,320.00$     2,233.00$     2,233.00$     2,436.00$     29
City City
4,547.00$     4,651.65$     4,530.26$     * * 26,990.88$   * 58
City Not Bid
4,281.00$     * 5,192.42$     * * * 29

Contracted Contracted
1,690.00$     1,600.00$     1,600.00$     1,975.00$     2,350.00$     2,214.15$     2,214.15$     2,264.03$     2,320.00$     2,320.00$     2,320.00$     4,320.42$     4,872.00$     4,872.00$     5,220.00$     29

Contracted Not Bid
780.00$         780.00$         780.00$         1,160.00$     1,218.00$     1,450.00$     1,522.50$     1,595.00$     1,653.00$     1,682.00$     1,682.00$     1,682.00$     1,711.00$     1,740.00$     29
City
161.00$         468.00$         319.26$         29
City
309.00$         348.18$         530.38$         525.00$         525.00$         29
City Not Bid
198.00$         223.99$         254.65$         435.00$         435.00$         435.00$         580.00$         638.00$         696.00$         696.00$         696.00$         725.00$         29
City Not Bid
100.00$         113.10$         293.23$         290.00$         290.00$         377.00$         377.00$         377.00$         638.00$         696.00$         725.00$         725.00$         725.00$         754.00$         29
City Contracted
978.63$         1,445.33$     2,110.90$     2,150.00$     2,250.00$     2,436.00$     2,436.00$     2,535.76$     3,480.00$     3,480.00$     3,480.00$     6,900.84$     7,192.00$     7,192.00$     8,004.00$     58
City Contracted
4,530.00$     * 4,002.86$     * * 17,993.92$   17,312.42$   17,312.42$   17,312.42$   17,312.42$   58
N/A City

* 6,747.72$     * 29
City (not bid) Not Bid

* 90.72$           696.00$         696.00$         754.00$         725.00$         725.00$         754.00$         754.00$         754.00$         754.00$         29
Contracted Not Bid

520.00$         520.00$         520.00$         435.00$         435.00$         667.00$         667.00$         725.00$         725.00$         754.00$         783.00$         783.00$         812.00$         841.00$         29
City Not Bid
6,225.57$     8,110.30$     * * * 29
N/A Not Bid

435.00$         435.00$         507.50$         580.00$         638.00$         667.00$         696.00$         696.00$         696.00$         696.00$         29
N/A Not Bid

* * 754.00$         2,399.75$     2,399.75$     2,610.00$     1,160.00$     1,305.00$     1,305.00$     29
TT City Sub II / Lot #39 522.00$         551.00$         580.00$         29
BBB 606 W. Chicago Rd. 1,160.00$     1,305.00$     1,305.00$     29
CCC 604 N. Prospect 986.00$         986.00$         1,015.00$     29
DDD 305 W. West  638.00$         667.00$         696.00$         29
EEE 805.5 E. Main  725.00$         725.00$         725.00$         29
FFF 2855 S Centerville Rd. 1,450.00$     1,450.00$     1,450.00$     29

NOTES:

All costs shown are based on bids submitted and approved by the Commission in their respective year bid.

Where a City cost is represented for an awarded bid, it is the calculated cost based on the previous years' data as used in the bid calculations.  If a contractor was awarded a bid, the 
City cost used for comparison that year is shown in the previous year.

Mowing Contract Historical Data 2012‐2025

Recommend City

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend City

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Costs for the 2012, 2013, and 2015 bids were submitted on an annual basis

Costs for the 2017, 2020, 2022 A, and 2023 bids were submitted on a per‐mow basis.  Costs in this sheet are shown on an annual basis, calculated with the 
"Estimated Mows per Year" shown on the far right.

These sites are vacant properties mowed by the City that do not have consistent history over time for comparision.

Estimated 
Mows per Year

2023‐2025

Recommend City

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend City

Recommend City

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

2,088.00$     2,088.00$     2,175.00$    

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

Recommend Contracted

2013‐2014 2015‐2016 2017‐2019 2020‐2022

AA Memorial Dr/Nottawa ROW
Contracted Contracted Contracted City

BB Paramount Site

CC

DD

EE

FF

N Jefferson Retention Basin

Mich St. Lift Station

Rest Stop Park/South St. Ext

Compost Site

City Subdivision 1 / Site N

City Hall/Library

YY

ZZ

AAA

NN

PP

QQ

RR

SS

UU

City Parking Lot terraces

Franks Park

Oaklawn Park

Memorial Park

VV

WW

XX

GG

HH

JJ

KK

LL

MM

Spence Softball Complex

Fawn River Rd. lift Station

DPS Maintenance Bldg.

Thurston Woods Park

208 N. Prospect St.

101 S. Jefferson (Depot RR Bldg.)

Langrick Park

Arkwrights

Shadowlawn Park

Pioneer Park

Doyle Community Center

Wall Fields

City City Contracted Contracted

City City Contracted Contracted

City (Not Bid) City (Not Bid) City City

City City City City

Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted

Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted

Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted

City City Contracted Contracted

Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted

Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted

City City City City

City City City City

City Contracted Contracted Contracted

City Contracted Contracted Contracted

City City

City City Contracted Contracted

Contracted

Contracted

City City City City

N/A N/A N/A City (Not Bid)

N/A City (Not Bid) City (Not Bid) Contracted

Site

PP Free Church Park
City Contracted

City City City City

N/A Contracted Contracted Contracted

City City Contracted Contracted

Contracted Contracted Contracted

Not Bid

1,392.00$     1,392.00$     1,508.00$    

Contracted

2,254.75$     2,254.75$     2,465.00$    

40



FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022
Total Staff Hours 16,759.25    18,769.00    17,488.50    17,042.00    15,838.50    17,520.75    14,528.75    14,754.00    13,862.20    14,903.05    15,193.25    17,479.75   
Full Time Staff Members 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 4
FTEs (40 hours per week, 52 weeks) 8.06 9.02 8.41 8.19 7.61 8.42 6.98 7.09 6.66 7.16 7.30 8.40

Parks and Cemetery Staffing
2011‐2022

41



City of Sturgis 
City Commission 
Regular Meeting 

 
Agenda Item 10A 

42



 

43



MICHIGAN LIQUOR CONTROL CODE OF 1998 (EXCERPT)
Act 58 of 1998

436.1545 "Nonpublic continuing care retirement center" defined; license; limitation.
Sec. 545. (1) As used in this act, "nonpublic continuing care retirement center" means a residential

community that, as determined by the commission, meets both of the following conditions:
(a) Provides full-time residential housing predominantly for individuals over the age of 62.
(b) Meets 1 of the following conditions:
(i) Is registered as a facility under former 1976 PA 440 or the continuing care community disclosure act,

2014 PA 448, MCL 554.901 to 554.993.
(ii) Is a home for the aged licensed under part 213 of the public health code, 1978 PA 368, MCL

333.21301 to 333.21335.
(2) The commission, on submission of a completed application, shall grant a nonpublic continuing care

retirement center license to an applicant complying with this section. Subject to subsection (4), the
commission shall not issue more than 25 licenses under this section. If the holder of a license issued under
this section goes out of business, the license must be surrendered to the commission. The commission may
allow the transfer of a surrendered license to a new business owner on transfer of the owner's interest in the
business if the new business owner meets the same condition under subsection (1)(b) as the previous business
owner.

(3) The holder of a nonpublic continuing care retirement center license may sell at retail and serve on the
licensed premises beer, wine, mixed spirit drink, mixed wine drink, and spirits, for consumption by a resident
or the bona fide guests accompanying the resident, only on the licensed premises.

(4) The commission shall not issue more than 20 licenses under this section to facilities described in
subsection (1)(b)(i). The commission shall not issue more than 5 licenses under this section to homes for the
aged described in subsection (1)(b)(ii).

History: Add. 2010, Act 213, Imd. Eff. Nov. 17, 2010;Am. 2016, Act 328, Eff. Mar. 8, 2017.

Rendered Thursday, March 9, 2023 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 4 of 2023

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

44



Business ID:

Request ID: 
(For MLCC use only)

Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) 

Toll Free: 866-813-0011 • www.michigan.gov/lcc 
 

• You must obtain a recommendation from the local legislative body for a new on-premises license application, certain types of license 
classification transfers, and/or a new banquet facility permit.

• Complete this resolution or provide a resolution, along with certification from the clerk or adopted minutes from the meeting at 
which this request was considered.

for the following license(s):

(township, city, village)

Instructions for Applicants:

Instructions for Local Legislative Body:

LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program.Auxiliary aids, services and other reasonable accommodations are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. LCC-106 (10/15)

(township, city, village)

to be located at:

(date)

(time)

Banquet Facility Permit Address of Banquet Facility:

Under Article IV, Section 40, of the Constitution of Michigan (1963), the Commission shall exercise complete control of the alcoholic beverage traffic 
within this state, including the retail sales thereof, subject to statutory limitations.  Further, the Commission shall have the sole right, power, and duty to 
control the alcoholic beverage traffic and traffic in other alcoholic liquor within this state, including the licensure of businesses and individuals.

council/board

the following resolution was offered:

and the following permit, if applied for: 

If disapproved, the reasons for disapproval are

approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.

this application be considered forIt is the consensus of this body that it
        (recommends/does not recommend)

Vote

DateSignature of ClerkPrint Name of Clerk

Please  return this completed form along with any corresponding documents to: 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission 

Mailing address: P.O. Box 30005, Lansing, MI 48909 
Hand deliveries or overnight packages: Constitution Hall - 525 W. Allegan, Lansing, MI 48933 

Fax to: 517-763-0059

(regular or special)   

Local Government Approval
(Authorized by MCL 436.1501)

At a meeting of the 
 (regular or special)   

called to order by on at
(date)  

Moved by and supported by

that the application from 
 (name of applicant - if a corporation or limited liability company, please state the company name)

 (list specific licenses requested)

Yeas: 

Nays:

Absent:

I hereby certify that the foregoing is true and is a complete copy of the resolution offered and adopted by the 

council/board at a meeting held on

45



City of Sturgis 
City Commission 
Regular Meeting 

 
Agenda Item 10B 

46



 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



City of Ann Arbor  

9:42. Keeping of chickens. 
(1) Any person who keeps chickens in the City of Ann Arbor shall obtain a permit from the City prior to
acquiring the chickens. No permit shall be issued to a person, by the City, and no chickens shall be
allowed to be kept unless the owners of all residentially zoned adjacent properties (as defined below in
subsection (3)j.) consent in writing to the permit and this consent is presented along with an application
for a permit. Written statements waiving the distance requirement in subsection (3) below shall also be
submitted at the time of application and become a part of the permit if issued. Application shall be
made to the City Clerk and the fee for the permit shall be as determined by Council resolution. Permits
expire and become invalid 5 years after the date of issuance. A person who wishes to continue keeping
chickens shall have obtained a new permit on or before the expiration date of the previous permit.
Application for a new permit shall be pursuant to the procedures and requirements that are applicable
at the time the person applies for a new permit.
(2) Notwithstanding the issuance of a permit by the City, private restrictions on the use of property shall
remain enforceable and take precedence over a permit. Private restrictions include but are not limited
to deed restrictions, condominium master deed restrictions, neighborhood association by-laws, and
covenant deeds. A permit issued to a person whose property is subject to private restrictions that
prohibit the keeping of chickens is void. The interpretation and enforcement of the private restriction is
the sole responsibility of the private parties involved.
(3) A person who keeps or houses chickens on his or her property shall comply with all of the following
requirements:
a. Have been issued the permit required under subsection (1) of this section.
b. Keep no more than 4 chickens.
c. The principal use of the person's property is for a single-family dwelling or two-family dwelling.
d. No person shall keep any rooster.
e. No person shall slaughter any chickens.
f. The chickens shall be provided with a covered enclosure and must be kept in the covered enclosure or
a fenced enclosure at all times. Fenced enclosures are subject to all provisions of Chapter 104 (Fences).
g. A person shall not keep chickens in any location on the property other than in the backyard. For
purposes of this section, "backyard" means that portion of a lot enclosed by the property's rear lot line
and the side lot lines to the points where the side lot lines intersect with an imaginary line established
by the rear of the single-family or two-family structure and extending to the side lot lines.
h. No covered enclosure or fenced enclosure shall be located closer than 10 feet to any property line of
an adjacent property;
i. All enclosures for the keeping of chickens shall be so constructed or repaired as to prevent rats, mice,
or other rodents from being harbored underneath, within, or within the walls of the enclosure. A
covered enclosure or fenced enclosure shall not be located closer than 40 feet to any residential
structure on an adjacent property provided, however, this requirement can be waived as follows:
(i) If the principal use of applicant's property is for a single-family dwelling, to obtain such a waiver the
applicant shall present at the time of applying for a permit the written statements of all adjacent
landowners that there is no objection to the issuance of the permit.
(ii) If the principal use of the applicant's property is for a two-family dwelling, to obtain such a waiver
the applicant shall present at the time of applying for a permit the written statements of all adjacent
landowners and of the occupants of the other dwelling stating that there is no objection to the issuance

63

https://localwiki.org/ann-arbor/City_Clerk
https://localwiki.org/ann-arbor/Chapter_104_%28Fences%29


of the permit. 
j. For purposes of this section, adjacent property means all parcels of property that the applicant's
property comes into contact with at 1 or more points, except for parcels that are legally adjacent to but
are in fact separated from the applicant's property by a public or private street.
k. All enclosures for the keeping of chickens shall be so constructed or repaired as to prevent rats, mice,
or other rodents from being harbored underneath, within, or within the walls of the enclosure.
l. All feed and other items associated with the keeping of chickens that are likely to attract or to become
infested with or infected by rats, mice, or other rodents shall be protected so as to prevent rats, mice, or
other rodents from gaining access to or coming into contact with them.
m. If the above requirements are not complied with, the City may revoke any permit granted under this
section and/or initiate prosecution for a civil infraction violation.
(4) A person who has been issued a permit shall submit it for examination upon demand by any Police
Officer or Code Enforcement Officer. (Ord. No. 08-19, § 2, 6-2-08, eff. 8-7-08)

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



City of Sturgis 
City Commission 
Regular Meeting 

Agenda Item 10C 

78



 

79



TO:                Andrew Kuk, Interim City Manager
FROM:           Holly Keyser, City Controller
SUBJECT:       2022-2023 Proposed Budget Amendment
DATE:             March 17, 2023

Original
 Budget 

Amendment 1
3.22.23

Proposed 
Budget

 Fund -261 Sturges-Young Center for the Arts

Revenue 566,800      (100,000)       466,800        

Expenditures 1,446,700   (200,000)       1,246,700     

Contribution from General Fund 352,680      352,680        

Contribution from Capital Reserve Fund 250,000      -                250,000        

Change in Fund Balance (277,220)     100,000        (177,220)       

Beginning Fund Balance 224,525      (52,695)         224,525        

Projected Ending Fund Balance (52,695)       47,305          47,305          

In accordance with the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, the following governmental funds need to be 
amended to reflect changes in the expected revenue and operating expenditures anticipated in the 2022-2023 
fiscal year, as compared to those originally estimated in the 2022-2023 approved budgets as previously amended.

The Sturges-Young Center for the Arts Fund revenue from contributions and expenditures for capital outlay are 
decreased to eliminate the deficit fund balance budget.  The results of the prior year resulted in a smaller beginning fund 

balance which has caused the deficit budget. 

80


	Agenda
	8. Consent Agenda
	8A. Minutes_03-08-23_WorkSession
	8A. Minutes_03-08-23
	8B. Bills - 03-22-23
	8C. Community Easter Egg Hunt
	8D. Board Resignations

	9A. Mowing Bids
	Updated DPS Mowing Bid Recommendations
	DPS Leaf Pick-Up Bid Recommendations
	Electric Mowing Bid Recommendations
	Mowing Contract Historical Data
	Parks-Cemetery Staffing History

	10A. Continuing Care Retirement Community Liquor License
	Nonpublic continuing care retirement center liquor license law
	Michigan Liquor Control Local Government Approval Form

	10B. Urban Chickens
	7-20-2021 Planning Commission Staff Report
	Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
	City Commission Meeting Minutes
	Proposed Ordinance - 2011
	City of Ann Arbor Ordinance
	City Ordinance Comparisons
	Sample Permit Applications

	10C. Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendment Memo

	10D. 2nd Precinct Commissioner Vacancy
	Noteworthy Meetings and Upcoming Events

	Button1: 


